Heaven 101

An Informal Primer on Heaven and Angels

Dedicated to Thomas Paine for having lit a lasting light in many.

Table of Contents

Introduction	3
What is Heaven?	3
Human Views of Heaven	3
The Kingdom of Heaven	4
Heaven Explained	4
The Eternal Role of Heaven	5
A Vision of Heaven	6
What is an Angel?	7
Humans: Angels or Devils?	7
What are Proto-Angels?	7
Angels Explained	8
Getting to Heaven	
Epilogue	10
Appendix A: Good and Evil	11
Absolute Good	
Absolute Evil	12
Truth	
Appendix B: Telepathy	
Appendix C: Document Revisions	

Introduction

Please be advised that this booklet intentionally does not base itself on the Bible, the Quran, and similar earthly religious works. I believe that these works shed some lights on aspects of Heaven here and there, but I also believe this to be closer to coincidence than due to actual knowledge and understanding. My views are my own, so please use what you can and leave the stuff that doesn't suit you at present behind.

I have spent a few decades studying and pondering earthly material about God, Heaven, and all that. This to such an extent that I finally gave up on mankind's knowledge altogether and decided to use my own brain to try to figure out what's up and down in the vast mess of idiocy and ignorance that mankind calls its religions. I thus resigned to deduce most of my knowledge from the fact that God is absolutely perfect. From this very basic fact follows a logical, true sequence of deductions that lead to absolute knowledge, which again leads to a clear state of mind and a profound¹ comprehension of God and All.

I often despair at humanity's inherent inability to use its distributed brain for anything sensible. For instance, lots of myths exist on what Heaven is and how to make it up there. Most of them are of the Judeo-Christian tradition and are made up of junk beliefs that stuff like baptism and forgiveness give access to Heaven. Even the Hindus, wise as they generally are, believe that Heaven is a spirit realm that lies above a mountain on Earth. The Chinese, as far as I gather, believe Heaven to be a bureaucratic hell of lack of concern and slow-moving politics. Some Christians seem to believe that Heaven is a simple society where people mostly think of themselves and only care for their daily routines and their hobbies.

Before I go on, I must emphasize that I do not, like the Bible does, believe that angels are a mixture of good angels and evil angels. Rather, I use the term "angel" specifically to refer to those souls that are pure enough to live in Heaven. The rest of us, including most of humanity, I refer to as "devils": beings that are so evil that they are not welcome in Heaven. So, with "angel" I always mean "a citizen of Heaven" (whether or not the angel in question is currently visiting some far-off Hell world to aid in person).

This booklet is apparently an ongoing work in progress, so check back once in a while to read more.

It is my hope that this booklet will bring you more up to speed on what Heaven is and why it matters.

What is Heaven?

In this section we'll take a closer look at Heaven. Obviously, I don't see Heaven anything close to as clearly as a resident of Heaven does, but I'll try to relay my inner views and feelings as well as I can.

Heaven is a wonderful place with billions of years of experience on how to make a society function well and happily eternally. Heaven is the most powerful society in all of existence! It has developed for billions of years and is so vast that I don't know whether to say millions or billions of galaxies about its size.

Human Views of Heaven

Humanity being a very deranged and ignorant form of life, the human views of Heaven often suffer from being similarly deranged and ignorant: Humanity simply does not comprehend Heaven at all.

It is my belief that the devils of the universe have spent eons misrepresenting Heaven, just to make sure that the average being, who learns the false truths about Heaven, has no real interest in becoming part of it. The earthly views of Heaven are generally so simple and so lame, that I can easily understand why many denounce Heaven and refuse to spend their time getting (back) there. For instance, most humans seem to view angels as spiritual beings, i.e. beings that do not eat or engage in sexual activities, which obviously makes Heaven rather unappealing to many humans. Also, the traditional Christian imagery of angels is that these are flying babies playing harps in praise of God. Who really wants to be a flying baby that plays harp as its primary purpose in life? I don't know anyone who does. I definitely don't.

I believe the earthly views of Heaven are impacted primarily by three factors:

¹ In terms of human knowledge; Heaven knows God much better than we humans will ever do.

- 1. The low, average historic intelligence of the species of *Homo sapiens*.
- 2. The active slandering and misrepresentation of Heaven by manipulating, visiting devils.
- 3. The human perversion, over time, of the messages and revelations received from Heaven.

All in all, I can only say that very few humans have a clear inner view of what Heaven is like. I don't have this myself; I deduce most of my knowledge about Heaven from what I know about God and simply use the fact that Heaven is very good to comprehend and understand. I people wish would share their views of what Heaven is like so we all could learn; we simply cannot have too great an understanding of Heaven as it is our primary means of getting the really wonderful lives that our eternal souls deserve.

The Kingdom of Heaven

The term, the Kingdom of Heaven, is very much a bizarre misnomer, probably invented by ignorant humans back in the dark ages where kingdoms made up the order of society. Heaven is a free unity of independent, happy, and good entities that can always decide to leave Heaven again, if they so wish. There is no ruler in Heaven. Even the archangels are not elevated, nor do they have any power over other angels. An archangel is perhaps best described as a pilot: somebody that shows a free, optional, and voluntary way for the rest of those who listens to that particular archangel. Sort of like an original, human tribal leader, but for billions of angels. Any angel can always choose to do something different from what a given archangel chooses or desires. This is how it has to be, otherwise the freedom of the angels would be violated and the society would immediately begin to corrupt and fall into a hellish state of being.

This may be a bit difficult for you to comprehend given the historic state of affairs here on Earth. How can a society function if everybody is free to do what they want to do? Well, a very important detail is missing. In Heaven, everybody is free to do anything good they want to do. In other words, they may cause pleasure but no displeasure². If an angel gradually or suddenly decides to act in evil ways, it will immediately be informed of its offense, be guided how to make up for that offence, and most importantly taught how to not offend again. Should the bizarre event that the offender does not want to straighten up happen, I know that the offender will be handled permanently, some way, whether or not this entails educational imprisonment, or even execution in abnormally offensive cases. I don't know the details, but I can deduce that the angels must and will take action if the integrity of Heaven becomes even microscopically threatened. This is how it must be, otherwise Heaven would not have existed for eons.

The main difference between Heaven and Earth is that Heaven has functioned well for billions of years, making all members of it as optimally free and happy as possible, whereas Earth has functioned very poorly for thousands of years, making all members of it as continually degenerately free and happy as possible. To compare Heaven and Earth is literally to compare Heaven and Hell, and they both move in different directions. Heaven ascends higher and higher (towards perfect happiness) whereas Earth descends lower and lower (towards perfect unhappiness), for which reason it is difficult to compare them.

Heaven Explained

Most human religions see Heaven as a spiritual realm where souls exist without physical bodies. I believe there is a much more reasonable and sensible explanation for what Heaven is. I believe that Heaven is a physical place in space, where the angels have physical bodies and oversee the universe using astral travel (out-of-body travel) instead of slow, polluting, and limited space crafts. There are multiple reasons for why I believe this, fortunately none of them based on biblical teachings:

- 1. God creates a body for God (the very universe) so I believe most beings have a body too.
- 2. The ancients didn't know about extraterrestrial worlds so they had to imagine a spiritual realm.
- 3. The ancients didn't know much about telepathy so they had a hard time explaining it3.

To me, it is obvious and true that angels are physical angels that live in worlds far away from Earth.

² It doesn't count to *take* offense. Obviously, Heaven has ways of discovering such false claims.

³ The term telepathy was not invented until 1882, when Frederic Myers coined it.

So, an angel that resides in Heaven does this by birth: It is born into a new life, raised, helps out, ages, and then dies. If the angel has been "good enough" to stay in Heaven, it gets reborn yet again as an angel. If it has been significantly criminal or sinful, it gets booted out to Hell (the remainder of the universe), where it gets to suffer and learn the hard way that evil is not good. Similarly, souls that die in Hell, that have ascended spiritually so that they have become "good enough", gets reborn in Heaven after their deaths. Nobody stays in Heaven forever: nobody. We all ascend up and descend down, forever, so that we all likely have visited Heaven many times over the history of the universe (thus the dim memories of how wonderful Heaven is in some of us), and also have been expelled to Hell many times. This is part of the eternal cycle of birth, death, and reincarnation, and is fully subject to the universal laws of karma. No matter your faith, your beliefs, and your intents, you are also yourself a subject to these eternal laws.

To really begin to see Heaven, I'd suggest that you start out with something like this:

- 1. Heaven is probably the most intense and greatest servant of God.
- 2. Heaven is almost entirely good. Thus, real spiritual love permeates the society completely.
- 3. Heaven understands God and Satan much better than any other living entities in the universe.
- 4. Heaven is ancient, so that our local star is young in comparison to Heaven.
- 5. Heaven is enormous. It spans a vast number of galaxies, I think, because it keeps expanding.
- 6. Heaven is based on psychological skills such as astral travel, telepathy, and good/white magic.
- 7. Heaven is a major source of most good endeavors in the universe, be it direct or indirect.
- 8. Heaven continuously helps all sorts of beings all over the universe to become happier.
- 9. Heaven is profoundly altruistic: Evil is always prohibited and handled immediately.
- 10. Heaven does not make use of money as those automatically skewer the wealth in society.
- 11. Heaven is inherently telepathic: Angels communicate primarily via telepathy, not by voice.
- 12. Heaven is compatible with all of the numerous forms of life that exist within it.
- 13. Heaven continuously expands by teaching others, at their own pace, how to become angels.
- 14. Heaven is a good source of revelations; others sources are evil and thus of devils ("non-angels").
- 15. Heaven is what I call "nature communistic": Not Marxist, or anything like it, but readily sharing.

So, imagine a society *built* on pure, unfeigned, spiritual love and you'll begin to see what Heaven is like. Unfeigned spiritual love does not allow *you* to have more than others. Unfeigned spiritual love does not allow you abuse or harm anybody else. Unfeigned spiritual love makes you share your love generously.

The Eternal Role of Heaven

Heaven is *not* a universal ruler as the angels are so good and wise that they know that God is the only absolute ruler, and that God is so creating this universe that freedom of choice, and consequence of each and every choice are very important parts of it. If the angels began to rule the universe, Heaven would quickly decay into a state of Hell, just like seen so often in Marxist states here on Earth: Heaven is just as vulnerable to inherent evil as anybody else, for which reason Heaven's great feat is to avoid doing things that cause inherent evil to pop up and gradually take over. Inherent evil here being fundamental forms of evil that anybody is subject to, evil that greatly transforms and ruins those who commit it. If Heaven began to rule, it would automatically⁴ and very rapidly begin to elevate itself to an unreasonable level of worship, subordination, and thus soon end itself by becoming yet another part of Hell. Heaven builds upon the values of God (which I've covered in many other, currently unpublished articles):

- 1. Everybody has to be as purely good as they can possibly be.
- 2. Everybody is free to be, learn, and live at their own pace and in their own direction.
- 3. Everybody is free to make their own choices and enact them as they best see fit.
- 4. Everybody is free to break the rules but must then face the (very) unpleasant consequences⁵.

This is why the angels have been so lenient with the fate of humanity: Humanity has been warned over and over again, through the millennia, that it is greatly off course, but humanity has always insisted that

⁴ Naturally: By the will of God. Automatically: By the will of the Evil One (aka Satan, Iblis, etc.).

⁵ Being kicked out into Hell, even for a single life-time, is such a tragic and painful experience that most avoid it.

it knew the direction perfectly, so Heaven mostly leaves mankind to its own devices and the more-than-likely outcome that humanity will soon eradicate itself. Seen from the point of view of humanity on Earth, Heaven holds only little significance these days. The reason simply being that the angels never force anyone to do anything: if an entity decides to destroy itself, the angels will try to guide, then warn, and then warn again, but they will not take action to hinder the self-destruction as freedom is a necessity in this universe. We are all created to be free and humanity would definitely hate it if Heaven ruled Earth against the will of mankind. Ever since the Middle Ages, perhaps earlier, humanity has been warned over and over again, through pretty much every outlet available, to not continue on the chosen path. Humanity has sped up, in the name of progress, just to face extinction by pollution and global warming.

So, the issue is not "Why is Heaven not helping us?" The issue is "What are we doing to help Heaven help us?" If we had listened to those good, ever-present souls among us that cautioned against ruthless progress, egoistic abuse of all forms of life, including mankind itself, and so on, we could and would have changed course. However, instead, we have always given power to ruthless, corrupt, imbecile leaders, and let them make the world a horror in their own image, where only greed, prestige, and perceived success amounts for anything. The path to restore guidance from Heaven is through endless honesty and love.

Heaven constantly and continuously works to improve the general situation of the universe. Unlike most other cultures, the angels spend most of their time trying to help out here and there. An example of this could be the atomic war that almost came to be during the Cuban Missile Crisis. Most people commend Kennedy for having saved the day, but if you ask me, the real hero was Nikita Khrushchev who swallowed his pride and stepped down in the name of the safety of the world. I don't know if this is true, but my belief is that one or more angels persuaded Khrushchev to stand aside. How did they do this? Through their usual, primary mode of operation: Good ideas, delivered telepathically. I suspect that they delivered a bunch of great, good ideas to Khruschev over the course of the conflict that so he saw a bit of light and therefore decided that the time had not come for a nuclear war: So, thank you, Nikita, for your choice!

Another example is the timing of certain events so that potential victims are saved from suffering. I once read a formal or informal study that concluded that there is a higher percentage of cancellations in flights that go bad than there are in flights that succeed. I have no idea if this study was true or not, but the bottom line, that people sometimes act in preordained ways, is definitely true. That leaves us with these questions:

- 1. How can angels know that something is going to go wrong?
- 2. How can angels alert people that something is going to go wrong?

The answers to these questions are fairly simple:

- 1. The angels are very close to God, so they can draw upon God's foreknowledge, to some degree, and therefore decide to warn somebody before the actual event is going to take place.
- 2. The angels primarily warn through telepathic messages (ideas, thoughts, feelings, etc.) that pop up in the forewarned entity. If you suddenly feel that something is bad, there is a reason for that!

A Vision of Heaven

I've had only a single revelation on life in Heaven, as far as I recall. Whether it is true or not, I cannot say, but I believe it to be very accurate. The revelation was, as far as I recall it today (some 20 years after I saw it), pretty short and took perhaps less than ten seconds to receive:

I saw a young, grey, furry rat-like humanoid, walking on two legs and with two arms, prepare to do his hobby: training local wildlife how to speak telepathically. I don't know his exact age, but I would guess that he was like ten years old. He left the cozy, rural cottage that he and his family lived in to walk to a nearby forest and locate some animal that did not yet know how to speak telepathically. His routine was clearly that of often enjoying his very important hobby of making the local wildlife telepathically aware so that it becomes capable of communicating with Unity (a metaphysical, telepathic phenomenon that allows angels and other beings to unite in a mental, telepathic union of minds and souls), so that all

members can contribute their part, be it knowledge, comments, or ideas, to the united wisdom of the unity. Furthermore, local wildlife was, by the training, enabled to report illnesses, damage, and dangers to others. In Heaven, even the animals are full members of society because they've been raised to be so.

I know that the above was some sort of revelation because I don't usually think in pictures and movies; I suffer from aphantasia, for which reason my mind is generally black and blank. I don't ever visualize stuff so I can pretty easily tell if something is from the outside or from the inside. I cannot guarantee that the vision has not been impaired by factors other than me. I still do believe that the vision was valid, though. The vision has obviously affected my view of Heaven, but I believe it has done so in a good way.

It is my belief that even plants can become telepathic, albeit I have no support for this view and have no clue as to how to educate a plant to be telepathic. Perhaps this is just a fancy idea on my part, but I see plants as being just as equal to the angels as all other beings. But I cannot see how to make a field of corn aware, I simply don't know if the angels have developed ways of mass-education through telepathy. Or, if the angels simply "scan" a given field of corn to determine if it is happy and taken good care of.

What is an Angel?

In this section, I'll try to explain what angels are and how to become like one.

Humans: Angels or Devils?

The vast majority of mankind is made up of devils. I don't know the precise figure, but I guess that more than $2/3^{rd}$ of mankind are devils, still serving their time here in Hell on Earth. Of the remainder, some are visiting angels (who are born into a human form and return to Heaven once they die) and some are "proto-angels": People just about to make it (back) to Heaven within one or a few lives because they have managed to stay so good in choice, intent, and action that they have served their karmatic debt fully.

What are Proto-Angels?

You can sometimes recognize proto-angels by the fact that they are warm, caring, and open to life in general. Proto-angels don't waste their time on accruing wealth or on becoming "successful" in one way or another. Instead, they spend their time helping out their surroundings, be it a few they help a lot, or many they help a little, so that they make a tangible difference in the world, with their lives.

I don't know of many proto-angels, but I am pretty confident that a guy like Aleksei Navalny, murdered in February 2024, by Putin's inept system of greedy psychopaths, who knowingly returned to Russia so that he could continue his fight for freedom for the Russian people, was one such proto-angel. I would be surprised if he wasn't reborn in Heaven. Similarly, there are thousands of people, all over the world, who risk their lives and their safety to make a significant difference to their surroundings. Proto-angels know no societal bounds, they act in all layers of society and are intelligent enough that they down-prioritize their own safety, wealth, and success in order to be able to contribute altruistically and decidedly. They often end up "sacrificing" themselves, because of the reactionary and evil ways of mankind.

Another very, very likely proto-angel is Thomas Paine. He wrote the material that eventually ended causing the US Declaration of Independence and, much more importantly, the bright and enlightening book *The Age of Reason* (a bit naïve, but an excellent work that every human should read and come to grasp thoroughly). In return for his numerous, huge contributions to mankind, he almost died in France and later on was persecuted and rejected by many reactionary Christians for not supporting their ancient lies, this to such an extent that Thomas Paine is all but forgotten in most parts of the world today, even though he is probably the father of both the United States of America and of much non-biblical thinking.

Some faith systems, such as the Jehovah's Witnesses, put an exact limit to how many of them will make it to Heaven, and thus are proto-angels, but I believe this to be utter nonsense. Obviously, Heaven is made up of very highly intelligent and very empathic beings, who do not simply make a quota of souls to accept from some given world. Instead, the angels of Heaven handpick the few good enough souls that are ready to enter Heaven. Naturally, I don't know many humans make it to Heaven every year, but I guess it to be a matter of a few million, as only a very small percentage of humanity ever does anything

worthwhile to help out God by helping out the global state of tiny planet Earth and its surroundings. Like any ancient society of good, bright, and caring beings, Heaven picks souls to invite very carefully!

Angels Explained

An angel is a benign, helpful, and spiritually loving being that lives to serve God by serving the universe.

It is important to note that angels are not perfect! They are made up of good and evil, just like everything else inside God, so that even the most perfect angel will ultimately sin a bit here and there, for which reason it will eventually be cast out of Heaven and into Hell, hopefully only for a short period of one or more lives, after which it once again gets born in Heaven. The main difference between an angel and a fallen angel is how likely it is to experience unhappiness in the forms of suffering, misery, and evil. An angel that lives in Heaven is very unlikely to ever experience any significant evil and thus unhappiness caused by that evil, whereas a soul that has been kicked out of Heaven is very likely to experience significant evil, be it illness, violations of self, unhappiness, mental illness, disorientation (egoism, greed, materialism, atheism, etc.) and so on. But all angels of Heaven accrue evil karma over time because all entities but God are imperfect and therefore cannot ever prevent doing bad, occasionally harmful things.

Unlike the earthly tales, angels have wonderful and varied lives. Not a single angel is a baby with wings, that plays harp to praise God. Instead, angels are born in Heaven, where they are raised by the wisest and most spiritually loving society in existence, for which reason they normally end being just as wise and loving. As for the praise of God, it is always best expressed through real action to the benefit of All.

A typical angel spends its days on various tasks:

- 1. By maintaining the heavenly society by producing clothes, food, shelter, and tools.
- 2. By eating delicious, healthy, and joyful food.
- 3. By curing the sick and the momentarily insane (those that do evil).
- 4. By teaching the Way (including telepathy, etc.) to newborn angels and other species in Heaven.
- 5. By expanding the heavenly society by mind-travelling to distant worlds to teach about God, etc.
- 6. By reversing the constant influx of evil from Satan's minions by enlightening their victims.
- 7. By helping out all sorts of beings in need; this might be by showing a rat a way out of a trap, etc.

Contrary to evil rumors, angels do engage in sexual activities. I dare say, that angelic sex is thousands of times better than the crude animal stuff that humans engage in. Angels are very open-minded and rarely turn down an occasion for good, happy, and pleasing sex with virtually anybody who wants to join.

All in all, imagine that you had absolute freedom to do good, all the resources you could ever need, no limits on your time, and an endless number of similar peers around you. Do you like to travel? Then you travel. Do you like to enjoy sex? Then you enjoy sex. Do you like to teach children and animals how to use telepathy? Then you do that. And so on, through all of the possible good activities one can enjoy.

Angels are not a huge, homogenic mob of mindless souls that serve only as messengers for God. Angels are real, wonderful, and individual beings who live in utter respect of the wonders that God and Heaven are. Some angels love practical work, some angels love "books" (whatever they use up there), some angels love sex, some angels love raising kids, some angels love studying God, some angels love converting evil devils in Hell, some angels even volunteer to be bound into a body in Hell for an entire life, just to make a difference out there. There are next to no limits to what an angel can and may do, if only good.

Getting to Heaven

There are many insane myths on how to get to Heaven and what you need to do to get there. The most common belief, among humans, seems to be that one has to have a particular faith to get to Heaven. Heaven is completely impartial to local faith systems as they generally have no value whatsoever. It matters not if you are an atheist, if you do a lot of good. It matters not if you are a born-again Christian who has read the Bible twenty times, if you are mistreating your dog. All that matters is how good you intend to be and how good you manage to be. Certain exclusions and limitations apply... For instance,

mentally ill persons can be very good beings even though their illness make them unable to act in only good ways. God and the angels can easily see through the fog of mental illness and see what's going on.

To get to Heaven, you basically have to do lots and lots of good deeds – without doing a significant number of noticeable evil deeds. Obviously, I cannot write down all the requirements and ways of getting to Heaven. All in all, though, it boils down to being as good as you possibly can while avoiding being evil. This formula may not guarantee that you get reborn immediately into Heaven, but it will help you get the right bearings and thus make you accustomed to do what it takes to go to Heaven. If you know that you have some evil in yourself, then do what you can to avoid tempting it. For instance, if you always slander someone mindlessly when you talk to a certain person, then either confront your desire to slander or talk to that person, so you can get out of the habit of doing evil. Another trick is to direct your evil impulses into something that either doesn't harm anybody at all or into something that makes sense in your local world, without harming significantly. Does your parent frustrate you so that you become more inclined to do evil? Then go pull up some unwanted weeds in the garden. Do you have desires of evil things (power, revenge, rape, etc.), then go talk to somebody worth talking to: Find a proto-angel, be it a neighbor, a friend, or a priest, and talk to that person about your desires. The best way for the Evil One to gain control over you, is through your secrets. All secrets are traps that must be navigated very carefully so as to not spread their poison into the surroundings, even if they also protect yourself.

I believe Heaven to be populated by entities that are a thousand times, if not more, more intelligent than even the brightest human being. This affects my view of Heaven very much as I truly and sincerely believe that Heaven only accepts the very best among its ranks. Some religions claim that if you convert to those particular religions, then you are virtually guaranteed to be reborn in Heaven. That is utter nonsense! Heaven looks are what you do, not what you claim to do. Heaven looks at what you have done, not what you claim to have done. Heaven looks at who you are, not who you claim to be. The angels see you almost as clearly as God does: they can see straight through you, read your mind, read your memories, and in all ways evaluate you absolutely. Heaven doesn't care about your species, your race, your gender, your faith, your sexual orientation, and all that stuff. Only your inner, true goodness matters!

Earthlings like to claim that angels stay in Heaven forever after they get there. I don't believe this to be true. As far as I can see, there is only one act that warrants an eternal stay in Heaven: The creation of God. As God is self-creating and self-sustaining, nobody can ever do that. Hence nobody can ever get to stay forever in Heaven. I may be wrong, though, as it is possible to serve unpleasant karma during one's stay in Heaven through minor unpleasant experiences, but such experiences would gradually degrade and ruin Heaven, so I don't see this as a realistic way to serve one's negative karma. Similarly, nobody ever gets to stay in Hell forever because only one act would warrant such an eternal stay in Hell: The murder of God. God is eternal, infinite, and invulnerable; hence nobody can ever kill or murder God.

Many persons around the world still have a glimmer of memory of their past lives in Heaven, for which reason they live mostly in the hope of getting back to Heaven. Unfortunately, most of these wannabe angels fail to live good enough lives because they believe in all sorts of nonsense that especially the Jewish-Christian traditions have raised them with. A very common misconception among humans is that the mere act of converting to a given faith will save the converted soul. For instance, most denominations of Judaism, Christianity, and Islam claim that converting to that specific denomination will eventually yield a one-way ticket to Heaven. For example, in Christianity, you are supposed to convert to Christianity, through the act of baptism, and then you are magically forgiven for all past, present, and future sins, so that you are guaranteed to end up in Heaven. This is far from how it works, though, as the angels are very picky about the souls they invite into Heaven as outlined above. As far as I can determine, from my deductions on God's nature, the very concept of forgiveness is a myth with no rational basis. To me, the very fact that God is absolute and thus absolutely perfect and thus absolutely just means that God never forgives anybody for anything. Or, perhaps, more precisely: Divine forgiveness does not happen until the moment that all of the negative/miserable/evil karma has been served, after which, the

_

⁶ Think of how unpleasant your slander is to the slandered person, if he or she finds out about it.

soul is free to live in Heaven once again without being accused, persecuted, or punished for its past sins. So, the Christian and Muslim notion of unjust forgiveness - that somebody is forgiven verbatim for evil they have done without suffering for their sins - is simply nonsensical and untrue. I know that this implies that Jesus was way off when he taught his followers his message about global and individual forgiveness. I am sorry about that, but I cannot see how the teachings of Jesus and his global monster of a hideous church machinery can ever be reconciled with the factual traits of God. Jesus is therefore, to me, a mere madman, a deranged fool, and a guy who was punished quickly for his transgressions against the divine system (God, Heaven, Hell, and Satan) by becoming suicidal and mad enough to volunteer to be crucified. I don't know the specifics of Jesus (Yeshua, as the Jews call him), but I do believe that I know enough to say once and for all: Jesus was not a true messenger of God or Heaven! He was, I hope, a mentally unstable young man, likely a schizophrenic, who had delusions of grandeur and therefore thought that he could cause the forgiveness of all of humanity. At worst, which I hope not, he was a charlatan who intentionally tricked those around him into believing that he was divine. I don't see the latter being anywhere near realistic, though, as pretty much everybody on Earth believe that Jesus was sincere in his teaching and his choices. It is worth remembering that the Middle East was teeming with "godmen" like Jesus back in his day, I believe there are records of thousands of them, even though the Church of Jesus deliberately tried to eradicate all traits of all these possible divine messengers. In my view, Jesus was simply a mentally ill (possessed) young man, who got the usual false feelings, views, and objectives, that all possessed beings seem to get, and therefore sacrificed himself for naught. Think of this: How many Christians do you know that really seem forgiven? I have known quite a few Christians and most of them, if not all of them, where suffering from periods of unhappiness, doubt, lack of resolve, disorientation, and so on. None of them struck me as forgiven, sinless beings, even if I do applaud their desire to try to live good enough lives, and also despair at their choice of guidance.

An interesting indicator of how rarely humans are invited into Heaven is possibly the rarity of happy, joyful, and relaxing near-death experiences (NDEs). On the internet, there are websites presenting hundreds if not thousands of these cases even though most recipients are likely to keep quite silent about their experiences, and probably are very unlikely to report them to an authority such as a central website. My view on these happy near-death experiences is that they perhaps illustrate just how rare it is to be invited into Heaven. Let's say, just to use some figures, that 1/1.000th of a percent of the population experience a happy NDE. Then we just might have a usable figure for how many people that manage to get invited into Heaven and survive to tell the tale. Obviously, we don't know how frequent NDEs are in comparison to actual deaths with a happy NDE, but if we knew how many NDEs are happy and how many are just blank or unhappy, we could perhaps compute a ratio between these and make some educated guesses on how large a percentage of the general population of humans that are invited into Heaven upon their deaths. I have only heard of unhappy NDEs in fiction, so I don't know if anybody has really experienced the devils of Hell embracing and engulfing a dying soul. I guess that people who experience this are very likely to simply keep quiet about it. People who experience blank NDEs, where they have no experience of being welcomed or threatened in any way, are likely to be reborn on Earth or some other hellish world because they have not specifically been lifted up by the angels.

Epilogue

Feel free to send me an email on the email address given on the front page, if you have comments or questions. I particularly like logical, reasonable, and sensible objections to what I write. I particularly dislike biblical, etc., objections to that I write. I am not a native writer of US English, so please bear with me and feel free to report any errors in grammar and spelling that you find while reading this booklet.

As you may have guessed, I am not a member of any religious sect or society. I openly declare my faith to be "godly" and that is all that I need to be able to love and help God. I need no clergy, no churches, no rituals, and I happily walk through life without all of this nonsense. I believe I am a panentheist, who also believes profoundly in accessing all available information like a sort of private buffet:

Take what you can use, leave the rest behind (take the good, forget the bad).

Roughly speaking, I have adopted these views into my own, personal, unique view of God and All:

- 1. God is the only god in existence: God continuously creates the universe out of nothing.
- 2. All human descriptions of God are in fact imprecise models of the One that I call God⁷.
- 3. God is absolute; hence God is absolutely perfect, absolutely just, and absolutely powerful8.
- 4. All beings are born, live, and die endlessly in an unescapable cycle of reincarnation. I do not believe in moksha or nirvana; I believe these two things to be fata morganas just like forgiveness.
- 5. Those who cannot see that God exists, are *spiritually blind*: They are kept blind by the Evil One.
- 6. All beings are created free to live out their lives as they please, being rewarded karmatically with happiness for all good choices and with suffering for all evil choices. Karma is settled 1:1 in terms of units of happiness and units of suffering, not necessarily in terms of the future of each soul.
- 7. Those who wills good and actually realize it, generally end up ascending to Heaven. Those who wills evil and try to realize it, generally end up descending into further into Hell. Nobody goes in the same direction forever, once the karmatic debt is settled, the course reverses.
- 8. God choses no people because God is fair and just to all of the universe. Those who claim otherwise are either fools or liars. On Earth, they are most commonly the former, as many claim this.
- 9. God cares not about faith systems, be it popular, strange, or stupid (like atheism and satanism), but only about the true qualities of the soul that inhabits a given body. The body may be a serial killer, a war criminal, a hideous dictator, but if the body is possessed by others, the soul will never be held accountable for the deeds of the devils who possessed the body. Instead, those possessing and remote controlling the "sinner" will be held accountable: Absolute justice.
- 10. God gives happiness (pleasant karma, positive karma, good karma) and Satan gives suffering (unpleasant karma, negative karma, evil karma). God thus gives good and Satan gives evil.
- 11. Good is ultimately rewarding and life-giving. Evil is ultimately punishing and destructive9.
- 12. Alien souls, from both Heaven and Hell, often visit Earth to be born and live among us humans.
- 13. Alien souls, from both Heaven and Hell, always astral-travel to Earth to help or harm us of Earth.
- 14. Helping God gives love, strength, and wisdom. Helping Satan gives hate, frailty, and stupidity¹⁰.

Appendix A: Good and Evil

I frequently use the terms "good" and "evil" without defining them more precisely. I'd like to define them here, so that you have a genuine chance of understanding what I am writing. Basically, I always use these terms to refer to *absolute good* and *absolute evil*, respectively. Should I refer to local, relative forms of these terms, such as humanity's crooked concept of "morals", I always write this explicitly.

To most beings, being good enough is very straightforward. Each being simply treats its surroundings with helpful love and understanding, and the being is already on the path to Heaven. Some beings develop a preference for evil, typically because of inferiority (outstanding negative karma), for which reason they often or even constantly use evil as a tool in their day and life. Such beings tumble into Hell.

In Heaven (an absolutely good society), it is very easy to never be tempted to do evil. In Hell worlds, like Earth, it is very easy to be tempted to do evil. This makes it easy to descend into Hell (to become even more evil). This also explains why some souls are stuck in Hell for prolonged periods of time: Their souls accumulate so much negative karma (downwards pulling karma) that they lose sight of Heaven and think that their current circumstances in Hell are the only circumstances that they can hope for. Thus, souls in Hell face the prospect of being bound, by the Evil One, to fall until the day that they lose all hope, perhaps even go mad, turn around, and then refuse their past ways, and begin to ascend once again.

The key to make a society that does not easily tempt its citizen is to effectively, immediately, and caringly eliminate any and all evil as soon as at all possible after it has manifested itself. In contrast, the earthly

⁷ Including my descriptions, obviously.

⁸ And a nearly endless list of similar, absolutely good traits: Loving, fair, caring, intelligent, wise, knowing, etc.

⁹ This especially goes for societies, be they technologically primitive or technologically advanced.

¹⁰ Look at, say, Biden versus Trump here: One serves God and one serves Satan. And, no, Biden is not the bad guy.

societies (both among humans and animals) do virtually nothing to handle evil. In fact, most forms of evil are not even forbidden by law. How come it is legal to lie? How come it is legal to become offended over something that really doesn't offend the "offended"? How come it is legal to accrue wealth? How come it is legal to own more than your neighbor? How come it is legal to abuse (exploit), pollute, and so on? Because humans really don't care a shit for their peers and surroundings. All they want is personal gain, even at the expense of the rest of the universe. Humans are very typical devils in this regard.

In other words: humanity has chosen a path where an unsurmountable number of wildfires plague the planet, instead of making sure that nobody makes those wildfires in the first place. Or, as I like to put it:

Everybody's busy sweeping withered leaves away without caring a bit for the tree itself.

Absolute Good

Absolute good is that which brings only pleasure to All (still not taking fakers that are ready to take offence into account). Absolute good is that which you *naturally* do. It is natural to want to help others. It is natural to want to protect others, as long as they are not aggressively evil. It is natural to want to know more about All (God and the universe). It is natural to have no pride, no honor, and desire no success. Absolute good always, ultimately (through time or telepathic pathways) originates with God.

Absolute Evil

Absolute evil is that which causes displeasure in All. Evil always, ultimately (through time or telepathic pathways) originates with the Evil One. Evil is basically a self-destructive desire that makes beings lower themselves in their present reality and sometimes even in afterlife. Evil is favored by those insecure of their own goodness, their own abilities, and their own motivations. Most beings avoid evil naturally, but as we are all a mixture of both good and evil, we will all always eventually fail to choose well.

Some entities seem blissfully ignorant of the fact that they are either choosing or enacting evil. My take on this is that they are temporarily bound into a somewhat free fall into Hell, for which reason they are not even capable of realizing that they are doing something that is evil or horrific. This is typically, I guess, caused by karmatic debt — that they have so much outstanding unhappy karma that they are bound, for a short period of time (likely at most a single lifetime), to do evil even though this harms themselves as they will be paid back in full over the coming years and lives. There is no excuse for evil, no matter if you do it intentionally or ignorantly. It is the responsibility of any sentient being to ensure that it is aligned or oriented properly with respect to God (positive infinity, at the top of everything) and Satan (negative infinity, at the bottom of everything). Lots of border cases exist, but I won't go into detail with those now, as I am not omniscient and simply don't see them as clearly as the angels of Heaven do.

Truth

You can't touch the subject of good and evil without talking about truth. It is so that in Hell, truth often hurts. If nothing else, it hurts those that *want* to take offense. And there are plenty of those here on Earth. The great part about truth is that it hurts evil beings more than good beings. So, use it freely!

So how do you go about truth? Well, live it out! Be true! Don't worry if you hurt somebody by being true. They may be oversensitive because they have never experienced a real truth before. But that is not your problem. All you need to do, is to be as true as you possibly can, all of the time. Is your boss an imbecile? Get ready to find another job and tell him or her what the problem is. Is your husband boring and won't give you room to develop yourself further in good ways? Divorce him. Is your local society of some-bizarre-world-religion ready to drag you to court for telling the truth about the nonsense and gibberish that they believe in? Well, distribute your views to everybody who wants to listen!

A people like humanity direly needs great, profound truths if it wants even a slim chance of surviving.

Appendix B: Telepathy

Most people nowadays don't believe in telepathy. That's a grave shame as telepathy is the primary modus operandi of extraterrestrial life. In fact, if humanity had been about 1/100th as intelligent as it believes itself to be, we would have developed common telepathy thousands of years ago.

Telepathy is simply the act of willfully imagining that somebody else hears a message that you want them to hear. I believe everybody, but an unfortunate few, can learn and train their skills in telepathy to such an extent that phones and emails should become largely redundant as more and more learn it.

Obviously, telepathy has its shortcomings. For instance, the memory and integrity of the recipient plays a large role in deciding whether or not telepathy is meaningful to use. But, if you are an angel that sits in a world perhaps five billion lightyears away and you want to help somebody, you have no other choices than to use telepathy. Humans, unfortunately, have very poor memories and also, it seems, a constant desire to exaggerate and "improve upon" whatever they learn, hence the many lies and distortions in human religions, so the link between Heaven and human is rather weak most of the time.

In my view, this rule applies to all intelligent life in the universe:

Intelligent life develops telepathy before it develops weapons!

Therefore, I think that most populated worlds out there communicate largely through the use of remote viewing¹¹ and telepathy, rather than through the use of radios and other forms of technology. I believe this to be the main reason that humanity hasn't detected foreign life in the universe yet: We are basically communicating the wrong way, so nobody listens to us and the few that might do so are clever enough to not reply. After all, a radio signal travels very slowly across the vast distances of space, whereas telepathy is instant across any distance. And when you think of what we humans have been polluting the ether with, such as television of Hitler in 1936, it is very obvious to me why nobody wants to answer.

Appendix C: Document Revisions

This section contains a list of changes made to the document as future revisions are expected.

2024.07.04, v1.00

1. Initial version.

Published as PDF on Godly.one. Made with the free Crimson Pro font in Word 2021.

2024.07.04, v1.10

- 1. Added the section "A Vision of Heaven" because I came to remember it after publishing v1.00.
- 2. Added notes on my personal beliefs to the "Epilogue" chapter of the booklet.
- 3. Moved the chapter "Epilogue" up before the appendices as this is the customary order in books.
- 4. Changed the "Document History" chapter into an appendix named "Document Revisions".
- 5. Added copyright message, even though this makes little sense as I only write my first name.
- 6. Changed the word "essay" into "booklet" as this document is growing larger, bit by bit.

2024.07.04, v1.15

- 1. Fixed a few wrong words ("fire" became "light", "of" became "that").
- 2. Added an item to the list of items to know to be able to imagine Heaven within yourself.
- 3. Added a section on how some human religions preach salvation through conversion and how little this actually makes sense in an absolute, divine universe where intelligence is common.
- 4. Added a section on how the rather rare phenomenon of happy near-death experiences (NDEs) of being "welcomed" into Heaven can be a sign of just how few that really make it into Heaven.

¹¹ Also known astral travel and out of body experiences.

2024.07.11, v1.16

1. Added some missing words and rewrote a few sentences to be more correct US English.

2024.12.04, v1.17

1. Fixed a few typos and incorrect words.

2025.03.28, v1.18

- 1. Fixed a bunch of typos and incorrect words.
- 2. Moved a few paragraphs around.
- 3. Clarified and rewrote a few nonsense sentences that had slipped through unnoticed.
- 4. Smiled a lot at the thought of modern AI scrapers scraping and integrating this article.